



Capital Strategy

Gravesham Borough Council 2019 - 2024

Table of contents

| 1. | Introduction | 3 |
|-----|---|------|
| 2. | Corporate Priorities and links to other strategic documents | 4 |
| 3. | Capital Expenditure | 6 |
| 4. | Capital Expenditure and Treasury Management Investments | 7 |
| 5. | Commercial Activity and Property Investment Decisions | 8 |
| 6. | Loans | 8 |
| 7. | Priority Areas for capital investment | 9 |
| 8. | Sources of Capital Funding | . 11 |
| 9. | Capitalisation Flexibilities | . 12 |
| 10. | Identification and appraisal of capital project proposals | . 12 |
| 11. | Revenue implications of Capital Expenditure | . 13 |
| 12. | Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2023/24 | . 13 |
| 13. | Governance and monitoring of the capital programme | . 14 |
| 14. | Understanding and Managing Risk | . 15 |
| 15 | S151 Officer Assurance | 15 |

1. Introduction

- 1.1 This Capital Strategy is intended to outline the principles followed by Gravesham Borough Council in its approach to capital investment over the long-term. It sets out the framework within which the council will plan, procure, prioritise and manage its capital investment and financing decisions in support of the delivery of the council's priorities, as set out in the Corporate Plan 2015-2019, and has intrinsic links to the Treasury Management Strategy of the council.
- 1.2 The Local Government Finance Act 2003 provides the statutory framework for the consideration of affordability in the council's capital investment decisions, taking into account both initial capital investment and ongoing revenue implications of the capital investment activity. Capital projects undertaken by the council will primarily focus on those which deliver long-term economic benefits to the borough and/or generate beneficial financial returns that will contribute to maintaining its ongoing financial sustainability.
- 1.3 The strategy has been developed by the Financial Services Team in conjunction with Housing colleagues and representatives of the Asset Management Group (AMG), which is chaired by the Director (Communities) and works corporately to promote good practice in Asset Management.
- 1.4 The strategy will be reviewed at least annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose and in line with other key strategic documents of the council. Minor updates will be made to the document with the agreement of the S151 Officer. Any material updates will be presented to Full Council for adoption.

2. Corporate Priorities and links to other strategic documents

- 2.1 The council's **Constitution** provides the Framework for how the council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures that are to be followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The Constitution contains specific references to how capital investment planning decisions should be taken.
- 2.2 The **Corporate Plan** is the key document for setting the strategic direction of the council. The plan is developed through consideration of local priorities, understanding the key community characteristics of the borough, consultation with residents, businesses and key stakeholders in the borough and government policies. The Corporate Plan 2015-2019: Delivering for the Community was adopted by Full Council in October 2015 and set the four strategic objectives of the council as being:
 - Safer Gravesham where local residents and visitors can live, work and travel in a safe, clean and green borough.
 - **Stronger Gravesham** a healthier more cohesive community where children have the best start in life and people are proud to call home.
 - Sustainable Gravesham a thriving and sustainable local economy, built on the foundations of high quality regeneration and development projects.
 - Sound and self-sufficient council a well-run and innovative council supporting its staff to realise commercial opportunities whilst transforming its services to deliver at the best possible value for money.
- 2.3 Each council department is required to prepare an annual **Business Plan** to demonstrate how its activity in the forthcoming year contributes to the delivery of the Corporate Plan objectives. The Business Planning template identifies where projects to be undertaken during the year are likely to require capital investment.
- 2.4 The **Medium Term Financial Strategy (MFTS)** sets out how the council will plan for and meet the financial challenges it faces over the medium term as a means of delivering a robust and stable financial basis on which to deliver quality council services. The council recognises the importance of ensuring that its increasingly limited revenue and capital resources are aligned with key policy priorities.
- 2.5 The **Treasury Management Strategy** documents how the council will manage its cash flows and investment transactions and seek to effectively control the risks associated with such activities in the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. The strategy also sets out how the council will make use of external professional advisors and ensure that the knowledge and skills of officers and Members involved in such activity are maintained. The Capital Strategy will seek to determine the borrowing need of the council, with this informing long term cash planning and therefore the treasury management activity of the council.

- 2.6 The **Housing Strategy** shows how the council and its partners will work together to address the borough's housing needs and includes specific priorities to improve the quality of housing in both the private and public sector and to maximise the supply of affordable housing. This is intrinsically linked to the **Housing Development Strategy**, which identifies how the council intends to add to its housing stock and the types of homes the council aims to deliver. Historically, expenditure on the council's housing stock had represented the largest element of the council's capital investment programme. In more recent years focus has been on maintaining the standard of the council's housing stock and delivering the council's commitment to delivering new council housing units.
- 2.7 The corporate **Property Strategy** presents a framework for the strategic management of the council's non-dwelling property assets. The principle objectives of the Property Strategy are:
 - To provide members and senior management with a source of reference for property related assets.
 - To retain, increase and develop new sources of income from assets.
 - To provide a financial return through its investment portfolio and sales of surplus assets.
 - To support a programmed, planned maintenance programme.
 - To assist Housing Development with the council's new build housing development programme.
 - To support adequate and appropriate accommodation for services
 - To assist with the delivery of major projects (e.g. Fleet Leisure and Heritage Quarter).
- 2.8 The **Property Acquisition Strategy** provides a framework for purchasing commercial property assets as a way of securing a better total return (i.e. from both income and capital appreciation) than cash investments, whilst still maintaining a high level of security.
- 2.9 The **IT Strategy** details how Information and Communication Technology (ICT) can be applied and developed to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan, the transformation agenda of the council and drive service improvement by enabling change and efficiencies.
- 2.10 The **Digital Strategy** supports the customer service and access strategy of the council and aims to expand the service delivery options by providing and encouraging customers to use the most convenient and cost-effective digital contact channels, where appropriate.

3. Capital Expenditure

3.1 Capital expenditure involves the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets such as land, buildings or equipment which have a long term value to the council. Such assets support the delivery of council services over the long term and create ongoing financial commitments to the council, either through capital financing requirements or ongoing revenue costs. The council uses the following classification of assets:

| Asset Classification | Asset Type Examples |
|-------------------------------|--|
| Property, Plant and Equipment | Council dwellings |
| | Land and buildings |
| | Vehicles, plant and equipment |
| | Infrastructure assets (e.g. paths, street furniture) |
| | Community Assets (e.g. parks and open spaces, allotment sites) |
| | Assets Under Construction |
| Intangible Assets | IT Software |
| Investment Properties | Properties principally held by the council to provide a revenue income stream/capital appreciation |
| Heritage Assets | Assets of historic or cultural interest to the borough (e.g. statues, monuments, civic regalia) |
| Assets Held for Sale | Assets that are being actively marketed for disposal |

3.2 The council applies a de minimis level of £12,000 for individual items to be charged as capital expenditure. Items below this level are charged to revenue in the year that the expenditure is incurred.

4. Capital Expenditure and Treasury Management Investments

- 4.1 Treasury Management investments take place as a consequence of the council's cash flows and debt management activity and will seek to maximise the return on the cash balances held by the council until this is required for use in the delivery of council business.
- 4.2 The council's treasury management investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second and then return. The management of these activities is documented in the Treasury Management Strategy and the Annual Investment Strategy.
- 4.3 The council's Annual Investment Strategy recognises that the council may, from time to time, make investment decisions as part of its policy decision making process or to help it fulfil its strategic objectives. Such decisions will be subject to due diligence checks but will be classified as a service investment (and capital expenditure) rather than a treasury management investment. At the time of preparing this strategy the council had interests in two such service investments:
 - Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA) established by the Local Government Association (LGA) to provide councils with the opportunity to raise funds at significantly lower rates than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).
 - Commercial acquisitions assets purchased under the council's Property Acquisition Strategy with the intention of generating a revenue income stream for the council.

5. Commercial Activity and Property Investment Decisions

- 5.1 Commercial property investment decisions are directed by the requirements of the Property Acquisition Strategy. The strategy forms part of the council's overall activity to proactively respond to ongoing pressures on local government funding and sets out the principal criteria for selecting investable property assets as being:
 - The investment provides a regular income with the net initial yield exceeding a minimum level of 3% above the prevailing 25 year PWLB fixed maturity rate, after taking into account all costs associated with the acquisition.
 - That the purchases be from the retail, industrial and business (i.e. office premises) sectors.
 - Acquisitions are not limited to being within the Borough of Gravesham.
- 5.2 Funding of £26.2m has been approved by Full Council for implementation of the strategy. The powers to acquire or dispose of properties purchased under the strategy have been delegated to the Chief Executive or Director (Corporate Services), supported by a cross-political party working group advised by the Chief Executive, Director (Corporate Services) and the Monitoring Officer. As appropriate, independent external professional advice is sought as part of the due diligence arrangements in evaluating potential acquisitions. These arrangements ensure that appropriate governance arrangements are in place whilst also reflecting the need for the council to be able to respond quickly in the event of a suitable property coming to market.
- 5.3 Any decisions made by the Chief Executive or Director (Corporate Services) are reported to the next meeting of the Cabinet for information purposes. Monitoring of activity under the strategy will be reported to Cabinet and the Finance & Audit Committee through budget monitoring reports, specific reports on the performance of the council's property investment portfolio and through the council's Performance Management Framework and Treasury Management Indicators.
- 5.4 The council has recognised that its decisions to invest in commercial property will expose it to fluctuations in the commercial property market. To this end, the council has established a Commercial Income Protection Reserve intended to meet any maintenance and upkeep requirements of assets purchased under the Property Acquisition Strategy or to smooth the impact on the General Fund revenue budget of any unplanned void periods. The Reserve is valued at 15% of the Rental Income reflected in the Medium Term Financial Plan.

6. Loans

- 6.1 The council has discretion to make loans for a number of reasons, but primarily for economic development of furtherance of housing delivery to meet the needs of the borough. Any such loans will be treated as capital expenditure.
- 6.2 In making loans the council will undertake appropriate due diligence to evaluate the borrower and the risk of borrower default on repayment amounts, ensuring that loan terms are reflective of this evaluation. As per the Constitution of the council, any decision to issue a loan will be taken in accordance with the treasury management policies and practices approved by Full Council.

7. Priority Areas for capital investment

7.1 The council recognises the importance of strategic consideration of capital project proposals as a means of prioritising the limited capital resources it has whilst ensuring the availability of resources so that essential assets continue to be provided and maintained.

General Fund

- 7.2 The financial resources available to meet corporate priorities are constrained in the current economic and political climate. Central government support for capital investment has reduced significantly over recent years, and the council recognises that capital investment will increasingly need to rely more on internal resources or through the council pursuing capital projects which are either self-sustaining or generate positive returns, both in terms of meeting corporate objectives and producing revenue savings.
- 7.3 The council's capital investment priorities for the General Fund will be:
 - Corporate Property Assets the council has a land and property portfolio valued at some £37m (at 31 March 2018) which is subject to periodic review by Property Services and the Asset Management Group to ensure that these assets continue to support the delivery on council services over the long term. The council has established a maintenance programme to support its key property assets which considers both capital and revenue requirements to ensure that these assets remain operational. Where acquisition or disposal of land or property assets is recommended, this will be actioned in accordance with the Property Strategy.
 - **Sustainability of the council** the council will seek to invest in capital projects that support the sustainability of the council over the longer term.
 - Regeneration Investment the council will seek to invest in capital projects that support longer term economic growth and place shaping. This will include the acquisition of strategic sites for the purpose of delivering such projects.
 - **Community** the council will focus its capital investment activity on the provision facilities that will directly increase community wellbeing.
 - Technology and Digitalisation the council will undertake appropriate investment in its IT infrastructure to achieve improved access to services, enhanced performance and deliver financial efficiencies.
- 7.4 The following material investments are planned to take place between 2019 and 2024:
 - St Georges Shopping Centre investment of £14.2m over a three year period to deliver improvements to the Shopping Centre, including the construction of the Leisure Quarter, mall enlivenment and entrance enhancement works.
 - Land Development plans are in place to develop council-owned land at Dering
 Way and at the Brookvale Depot to provide commercial space to support economic
 development within the borough.
 - **Commercial Property Acquisition –** continuation of the activity to secure ongoing revenue returns to support the delivery of council services.

Housing Revenue Account

- 7.5 The financial resources available to meet corporate priorities are constrained in the current economic and political climate. Central government support for capital investment has reduced significantly over recent years, and the council recognises that capital investment will increasingly need to rely more on internal resources or through the council pursuing capital projects which are either self-sustaining or generate positive returns, both in terms of meeting corporate objectives and producing revenue savings.
- 7.6 The council's capital investment priorities for the Housing Revenue Account will be:
 - Council Dwellings the council has dwellings portfolio valued at some £313m (at 31 March 2018). As a Landlord, the council has a responsibility to ensure that the dwellings it provides are fit for purpose and maintained to a decent standard. Where acquisition or disposal of dwellings is recommended, this will be actioned in accordance with the approved Housing Development Strategy. Investment in the council housing stock ensures properties remain lettable, helping to secure and sustain the rental income which fundamentally ensures the viability of the HRA. The council undertakes a programme of stock condition surveys to ascertain the status of its housing stock and inform both capital and revenue expenditure requirements over the next 30 years to ensure the stock is sufficiently maintained.
 - New Build and Acquisitions The council has put in place a new build, acquisitions and conversion programme to deliver its commitment to provide new affordable homes for its communities. The programme utilises the '1-4-1' receipts generated from the sale of council dwellings though the Right to Buy (RTB) scheme, which are to be used to meet 30% on the cost of eligible new build schemes and dwelling acquisitions. This investment helps to deliver housing to meet the needs of the borough, as well as offsetting the loss of housing stock and associated rent income loss from sales through RTB.
 - **Disabled Facilities Grants** the council administers financial grants towards the cost of adaptations and provision of facilities to enable disabled persons to remain living in their home.
 - Technology and Digitalisation the council will undertake appropriate investment in its IT infrastructure to achieve improved access to services, enhanced performance and deliver financial efficiencies.
- 7.7 The following material investments are planned to take place between 2019 and 2024:
 - Maintenance of existing dwelling stock delivery of a programme of works focused on the replacement and improvement of elements within dwellings and ensuring the health & safety of our tenants.
 - New Build and Acquisitions investing in the expansion of the council housing stock for the purpose of delivering further affordable housing for use by residents of the borough.

8. Sources of Capital Funding

- 8.1 Central government support for capital investment has reduced significantly over recent years and financial resources available to meet corporate priorities continue to be constrained in the current economic and political climate. There is a need, therefore, for greater reliance to be placed on internal resources or external funding, including borrowing, to fund capital investment. Decisions on capital investment will need to have a greater focus on projects that are either self-sustaining or generate positive returns both in terms of meeting corporate objectives and producing revenue savings.
- 8.2 The capital programme will be funded from the following principal sources:
 - **Central government** Grants may be allocated in relation to specific programmes or projects, such as the Disabled Facilities Grant.
 - Third Party funding funding for capital projects may also be provided by quasigovernment sources, national organisations or other parties external to the council. The Council will always seek to maximise external contributions, subject to any related grant conditions and/or match-funding obligations.
 - Developer contributions these represent contributions from developers on implementation of a permitted scheme towards the provision of public assets or facilities and are generally linked to the mitigation of impacts of developments on existing communities. These contributions are usually earmarked for specific purposes in planning agreements and are generally related to infrastructure projects.
 - Unsupported borrowing under the Prudential Code the council has discretion
 to finance the capital programme by undertaking borrowing to fund capital
 projects with the full cost of that borrowing being funded from within council
 resources. Each proposal for borrowing will be assessed in its own merit to
 ensure that it is prudent, affordable and sustainable.

The council has set an authorised limit and operational boundary for gross debt with this reviewed and monitored by the Finance & Audit Committee as part of their treasury management responsibilities. The limits for the forthcoming year and following two financial years are set out below:

| Authorised limit | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 |
|---|-------------|--------------|-------------|-------------|
| | Estimate £m | Estimate £m/ | Estimate £m | Estimate £m |
| Debt (including HRA Settlement) | 126.500 | 126.500 | 130.200 | 131.400 |
| Other Long Term Liabilities | 1.600 | 1.600 | 1.600 | 1.600 |
| Commercial activities / non-financial investments | 20.000 | 35.000 | 35.000 | 35.000 |
| Total | 148.100 | 163.100 | 131.800 | 133.000 |
| Operational Boundary | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 |
| Debt (including HRA Settlement) | 125.000 | 125.000 | 128.700 | 129.900 |
| Other Long Term Liabilities | 1.500 | 1.500 | 1.500 | 1.500 |
| Commercial activities / non- | 15.000 | 30.000 | 30.000 | 30.000 |
| Total | 141.500 | 156.500 | 130.200 | 131.400 |

- Capital receipts from asset disposal council assets which are deemed surplus
 may be considered for disposal, generating capital receipts that can then be
 directed to fund other capital projects.
- Revenue, Balances and Reserves capital expenditure may be funded directly from an in-year revenue contribution, a direct contribution from working balances or by specific revenue reserves set aside for such purposes.

9. Capitalisation Flexibilities

9.1 Central government support for capital investment has reduced significantly over recent years and financial resources available to meet corporate priorities continue to be constrained in the current economic and political climate. There is a need, therefore, for greater reliance to be placed on internal resources or external funding, including borrowing, to fund capital investment. Decisions on capital investment will need to have a greater focus on projects that are either self-sustaining or generate positive returns both in terms of meeting corporate objectives and producing revenue savings.

10. Identification and appraisal of capital project proposals

- 10.1 There is a requirement for the council to ensure continued funding for existing programmes of work and to prioritise new capital projects that come forward. For this purpose the council has developed a capital bid process. New project proposals will be submitted using the CP1 Form (see Appendix One) and will be initially endorsed by the relevant Director before being put forward for further evaluation by Financial Services.
- 10.2 The council has adopted the following high level criteria in assessing such bids:
 - the extent to which the project contributes to meeting the key aims and objectives of the Corporate Plan;
 - the extent to which projects contribute to the priority areas set out in the strategy;
 - the impact of the project on service provision and meeting statutory obligations;
 - the financial viability of the project and the extent to which it provides future financial and performance benefits to the council and benefit to the wider community;
 - the consequences of not undertaking the project.
- 10.3 On receipt of a CP1 Form, the evaluation process will be conducted by Financial Services as part of the annual budget setting process. The outcomes of the evaluation exercise will then be presented to the council's Management Team for review and endorsement of projects to be taken forward. As part of the annual budget setting process, the endorsed capital programme will be presented to Cabinet initially before being proposed to and approved by Full Council.
- 10.4 Capital plans for the forthcoming five years are incorporated into the annual budget book. The Medium Term Financial Plan and HRA Business Plan incorporate the anticipated revenue effects arising from the capital programme.
- 10.5 In year capital project proposal can be generated from a variety of sources, primarily from external funding opportunities or a need to respond to a particular issue that has arisen during the year. Such proposals will be considered in the same way as those submitted through the annual capital bid process.

11. Revenue implications of Capital Expenditure

- 11.1 In approving projects for inclusion within the capital programme, the council will ensure that capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable, taking into account the arrangements for the repayment of debt through the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy approved as part of its treasury management framework. Anticipated ongoing revenue budget implications of capital expenditure decisions will be documented on the CP1 form used to capture and consider new project proposals.
- 11.2 Capital financing charges, additional running costs, savings on expenditure or income arising from capital investment decisions will be reflected in the Medium Term Financial Plan.

12. Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2023/24

- 12.1 The council has a statutory responsibility to set a fully funded three year capital programme each year when agreeing the budget. These plans are published in the Budget Book which supports the budget and council tax setting considerations by Full Council in February each year.
- 12.2 For the purposes of strategic capital planning the council has extended its public capital programming horizon to five years and the proposed programmes for both the General Fund and HRA are provided at Appendix Two and Appendix Three, with a summary of these plans provided below:

| | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 |
|-------------------------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|
| TOTAL RESOURCES USED | Original | Original | Original | Original | Original |
| | Budget | Budget | Budget | Budget | Budget |
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| | | | | | |
| General Fund Capital Expenditure | 19,548,550 | 6,432,250 | 435,000 | 355,000 | 370,000 |
| HRA Capital Expenditure | 15,889,230 | 19,362,000 | 14,381,000 | 13,097,000 | 12,697,000 |
| Non HRA Housing Capital Expenditure | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 |
| | | | | | |
| TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME | 36,270,580 | 26,627,050 | 15,648,800 | 14,284,800 | 13,899,800 |
| FINANCED BY: | | | | | |
| Grants and Contributions | 6,474,740 | 6,510,050 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 |
| Major Repairs Reserve | 8,221,420 | 7,140,000 | 7,088,000 | 7,088,000 | 7,093,000 |
| Capital Receipts | 925,120 | 150,000 | 150,000 | 150,000 | 150,000 |
| Specific Reserves | 8,761,890 | 6,281,000 | 3,784,000 | 3,712,000 | 3,872,000 |
| Revenue Contributions | 0 | 3,396,000 | 3,682,000 | 2,502,000 | 1,952,000 |
| External Borrowing | 5,900,000 | 3,150,000 | 112,000 | 0 | 0 |
| Internal Borrowing | 5,987,410 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| TOTAL RESOURCES USED | 36,270,580 | 26,627,050 | 15,648,800 | 14,284,800 | 13,899,800 |

- 12.3 The fully funded five year Capital Programme of the council has a total value of £106.73m, of which:
 - £27.14m relates to General Fund projects
 - £75.43m relates to HRA projects
 - £4.16m relates to General Fund Housing projects

13. Governance and monitoring of the capital programme

- 13.1 The Capital Strategy will be considered annually by the Finance and Audit Committee before being presented for approval by Full Council.
- 13.2 The Constitution of the Council (Financial Procedure Rules, Annex 2.6) requires:
 - the Section 151 Officer to ensure that a three-year programme of capital expenditure is prepared on an annual basis, following the principles established in the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy. The programme will show projects already approved and those for future consideration. Such programmes will be considered by the Chief Officer Management Team and Cabinet before submission to the Full Council.
 - the Section 151 Officer and the Director responsible for development management to maintain a register of capital funding sources.
 - a full report to be presented to Cabinet for any planned or proposed capital expenditure exceeding £100,000 or which might entail the council taking on significant liabilities before any contractual commitment is entered into.
 - A full report to be presented to Cabinet where a revised estimate of a scheme either exceeds £100,000 or exceeds the last reported estimate by an amount equal to 2% or £10,000, whichever the lesser figure.
- 13.3 The annual business planning process for the council requires each department to set out proposed projects for the year and identify where such projects are likely to require capital investment and how projects link to corporate plan objectives and policy commitments.
- 13.4 In-year capital requirements are assessed in accordance with the evaluation process defined in this strategy and are considered by Management Team prior to presentation to Members.
- 13.5 At least quarterly, responsible officers are requested to provide updates on the delivery of projects included within the annual capital programme. This process is supplemented by financial monitoring information produced by Financial Services and circulated to key officers.
- 13.6 The capital programme is monitored on a quarterly basis as part of the Council's budget monitoring arrangements by both Cabinet and the Finance and Audit Committee, with reports to Members provided on new projects, variations to existing projects, slippage in programme delivery and the progress of significant schemes.
- 13.7 The Capital Strategy and the capital programme in subject to Internal and External Audit review.

14. Understanding and Managing Risk

- 14.1 Risk is considered throughout the capital investment process set out in this strategy through the way in which projects are appraised, approved, monitored and reported on. The Prudential Indicators reported as part of the council's treasury management monitoring arrangements also provide measures by which the council can assess and understand the risk of its capital investment decisions and ensure that capital expenditure remains affordable, prudent and sustainable.
- 14.2 The council has adopted a project management approach. Project management tools will be used in accordance with the size and scale of the project, with a risk assessment carried out as part of the completion of any Project Initiation Document.
- 14.3 Each capital investment project is assessed to ensure that the council is aware of any VAT implications the project may present.
- 14.4 The council is facing diminishing capital resources and limited access to grants and external funding opportunities which means the council needs to monitor use of available funds to ensure that it is fully aware of the financial implications of capital investment. Suitability and availability of funding is considered on a project-by-project basis and levels of capital resources are reported to Management Team and Members through quarterly budget monitoring reports.
- 14.5 The acquisition or disposal of capital assets, or procurement contract to deliver or maintain capital assets are to be conducted in line with the council's Contract Procedure Rules and Procurement Strategy.

15. S151 Officer Assurance

- 15.1 This capital strategy has been prepared in line with the requirements of the 2018 CIPFA Prudential Code and 2018 Treasury Management Code.
- 15.2 The Section 151 Officer views the strategy to be prudent and affordable and fully reflective of the council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy and other Strategic Plans.

PROPOSED CAPITAL PROJECTS 2019/20 AND BEYOND

A. SUMMARY PROJECT DETAILS

| Project Title | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|--|
| Project Summary (include an overview of the proposal including the main purposes and benefits of the project and now expected outcomes will be measured and evaluated) | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Expected Start Date | | | | | |
| Expected Completion Date | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Responsible Service Manager | r | | | | |
| Responsible Project Manager | | | | | |
| Directorate | | | | | |
| Portfolio | | | | | |
| Approval by Director: | | | | | |
| Date: | | | | | |

NB: Forms will be rejected and returned unless fully completed and appropriately authorised Please return completed and authorised forms to the Finance Team, 3rd Floor. Areas marked in grey are for Finance use only.

B. CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES AND COMMITMENTS

| No. | Corporate Plan commitments | Score 1 met (1), 2(4) 3+= (7 |
|---------------|--|----------------------------------|
| 1 | | |
| 2 | | |
| 3 | | |
| 4 | | |
| 5 | | |
| • | | |
| | Total Score: | |
| | Total Score: Sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con Capital Strategy can be obtained from the Finance Team | tribute. |
| | sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con | tribute. Score 1 met (1), 2+(4) |
| Copy of the C | sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con Capital Strategy can be obtained from the Finance Team | Score |
| No. | sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con Capital Strategy can be obtained from the Finance Team | Score |
| No. | sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con Capital Strategy can be obtained from the Finance Team | Score |
| No. 1 2 | sert the Capital Strategy priority to which this project will con Capital Strategy can be obtained from the Finance Team | Score |

Total Section Score:

C. RISK MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE CONTINUITY

Is the capital project urgently required. Yes / No If yes, explain the urgency and any references to statutory obligations: Response No and Score Score Criteria 1 year (5) Within what timescales is the project required to be **C1** 2 years (3) delivered 3 years+ (1) Is the project critical to avoid or minimise disruption to future Yes (4) C2 service provision No (0) Is the project critical to furtherance of partnership or joint Yes (2) **C**3 working No (0) Is the project critical to avoid health & safety issues for Yes (4) C4 Council clients or staff No (0) Will this project increase the public perception of the Council Yes (2) C5 or is the asset considered to be an important Local Asset No (0) (e.g. Heritage Asset)

D. FUNDING RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

| No | | Response and Score Criteria | Score | |
|----------------------|--|---|-------|--|
| D1 | Is the proposed project required to be approved to secure external grant funding | Grant funding: 75%+ (3) 50%-75% (2) <50% (1) | | |
| D2 | Is the project fully funded from revenue or reserve contributions | Yes (3) No (0) | | |
| D3 | Is the project required to secure ongoing revenue savings, a return and/or to generate a capital receipt | Yes (3) No (0) | | |
| D4 | Will the project generate an ongoing revenue commitment | <£10k pa (-1) £10k-£20k (-3) £20k+ (-5) | | |
| Total Section Score: | | | | |

| Scores Carried Forward | | | | |
|------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Section B | | | | |
| Section C | | | | |
| Section D | | | | |
| Total Score | | | | |

| | Previous | | | | | | |
|--|------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|-------|---|
| | Years | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | Total | Comments |
| | Allocation | | | | | | |
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ | |
| CAPITAL COSTS | | | | | | | |
| Cost of works (building and other) | | | | | | | |
| Furniture & Equipment | | | | | | | |
| Fees | | | | | | | |
| Other (please state) | | | | | | | |
| TOTAL SCHEME COSTS | | | | | | | |
| CAPITAL FUNDING | | | | | | | |
| Capital Receipts | | | | | | | |
| Government Grant | | | | | | | |
| Other External Funding (please state) | | | | | | | |
| Supported Borrowing | | | | | | | |
| Unsupported Borrowing | | | | | | | |
| Other Funding | | | | | | | |
| TOTAL FUNDING | | | | | | | (Must equal Total Scheme Costs otherwise form will be rejected) |
| REVENUE IMPLICATIONS (excluding Capital Charges) | | | | | | | |
| Staff Costs | | | | | | | |
| Non Staff Costs (please state) | | | | | | | |
| Income (show as negative) | | | | | | | Please specify income type ie rent, fees etc |
| Total Expenditure | | | | | | | |

E. RISK REGISTER

Please identify any relevant risks associated with the proposed capital scheme, probability, and the level of impact they could have on the scheme if not managed and the mitigating action you propose in order to minimise or reduce the risk.

Please add or delete rows depending on the number of risks identified.

If the scheme is added to the capital programme the risk register should be reviewed on a quarterly basis and updated as necessary.

| Key Theme | Risk | Impact | Probability | Mitigating Action | Comments |
|-----------|------|--------|-------------|-------------------|----------|
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

F. VALUE FOR MONEY Please describe how the project is providing value for money **G. OPTION APPRAISAL** Please state the implications if the project proceeds with a reduced rate of investment or if it does not proceed. Scheme proceeds at a reduced level Scheme does not proceed H. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT Has due consideration for equality strands been given and are there any adverse impacts that need to be highlighted (please detail)

For Finance Use Only

| I. TAX/VAT Are there any resulting Tax/VAT implications, if so details here | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| J. OTHER IMPACTS Are there any other issues which need to be taken into account | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| K. ECONOMIC GROWTH Are there any other economic growth considerations which need to be taken into account (impact on council tax and business rates, number of jobs created, links to regional, local or national growth strategies) | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

FINAL PROJECT EVALUATION

| Financia | al Considerations | Score |
|----------|---|-------------------|
| 1 | Does the project meet the criteria for capitalisation? | YES/NO |
| 2 | Are the tax implications for the council fully understood? (see I above) | YES/NO |
| 3 | Are the financial plans clear and fully costed? | YES/NO |
| 4 | Are the financial plans robust, viable and (where appropriate) sustainable? (i.e. sensitivity analysis where appropriate) | YES/NO |
| 5 | Does the project secure other benefits to the council (see K above) | YES/NO |
| | All Yes (PASS), All No (FAIL) | PASS/PARTIAL?FAIL |

| | | Score |
|-----|-----------------------------------|-------|
| No. | Capital Strategy Priority | |
| 1 | Score Carried Forward - Section B | |
| 2 | Score Carried Forward - Section C | |
| 3 | Score Carried Forward - Section D | |
| | Total Score: | |

| Presented to MT on: | |
|---------------------|--|
| Decision taken: | |

| INVESTMENT PLAN SUMMARY | 2019-20 Budget £ | 2020-21 Budget £ | 2021-22 Budget £ | 2022-23 Budget £ | 2023-24 Budget £ |
|--------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Chief Executive | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Housing & Regeneration | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Communities | 953,000 | 510,000 | 230,000 | 150,000 | 165,000 |
| Environment & Operations | 971,500 | 205,000 | 205,000 | 205,000 | 205,000 |
| Corporate Services | 17,624,050 | 5,717,250 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 19,548,550 | 6,432,250 | 435,000 | 355,000 | 370,000 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget £ | 2020-21 Budget £ | 2021-22 Budget £ | 2022-23 Budget £ | 2023-24 Budget £ |
|---------------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Essential Panaira to Buildings | 420 500 | 210.000 | 0 | 0 | 45,000 |
| Essential Repairs to Buildings | 429,500 | 210,000 | U | U | 45,000 |
| Gatekeeper Replacement | 50,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Replacement Artificial Sports Pitches | 50,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Envelope Filling Equipment | 20,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Heritage Assets | 328,500 | 300,000 | 230,000 | 150,000 | 120,000 |
| Back up Generator | 75,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 953,000 | 510,000 | 230,000 | 150,000 | 165,000 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget £ | 2020-21 Budget £ | 2021-22 Budget £ | 2022-23 Budget £ | 2023-24 Budget £ |
|--|-------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Purchase of Vehicles (DSO Fleet) Replacement Play Equipment Parking Machines | 535,000 185,300 251,200 | 205,000 0 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 971,500 | 205,000 | 205,000 | 205,000 | 205,000 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget £ | 2020-21 Budget £ | 2021-22 Budget £ | 2022-23 Budget £ | 2023-24 Budget £ |
|---------------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Brookvale Office Accommodation | 1,400,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| | , , | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Property Acquisition Programme | 2,328,600 | U | U | U | 0 |
| Land Acquisiton Programme | 3,658,810 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Heritage Quarter - St George's Centre | 5,461,640 | 5,677,250 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| IT Equipment Air Conditioning Unit | 40,000 | 40,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Land at Dering Way | 4,735,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 17,624,050 | 5,717,250 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

| INVESTMENT PLAN SUMMARY | 2019-20 Budget | 2020-21 Budget | 2021-22 Budget | 2022-23 Budget | 2023-24 Budget |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| HRA Capital Maintenance Expenditure | 7,744,230 | 8,744,000 | 5,581,000 | 4,270,000 | 3,387,000 |
| HRA New Build and Acquisitions | 7,465,000 | 10,618,000 | 8,800,000 | 8,827,000 | 9,310,000 |
| HRA Other Capital Expenditure | 680,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Non HRA Housing Capital Expenditure | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 |
| | 16,722,030 | 20,194,800 | 15,213,800 | 13,929,800 | 13,529,800 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 |
|-----------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| 11100-00 | Budget | Budget | Budget | Budget | Budget |
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| Replacement Programme | 4,537,410 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Improvement Programme | 2,069,290 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Health & Safety | 1,137,530 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Planned Maintenance | | 7,142,000 | 3,948,000 | 2,609,000 | 1,696,000 |
| Heating Installations | | 1,224,000 | 1,248,000 | 1,270,000 | 1,293,000 |
| Disabled Adaptations | | 306,000 | 312,000 | 317,000 | 323,000 |
| Asbestos Management | | 72,000 | 73,000 | 74,000 | 75,000 |
| | 7,744,230 | 8,744,000 | 5,581,000 | 4,270,000 | 3,387,000 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget | 2020-21 Budget | 2021-22 Budget | 2022-23 Budget | 2023-24 Budget |
|------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| St Hilda's | 1,285,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Whitehill Road | 3,680,000 | 3,963,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Valley Drive Bedsits | 2,500,000 | 6,655,000 | 120,000 | 0 | 0 |
| Other New Build Scheme | 0 | 0 | 8,680,000 | 8,827,000 | 9,310,000 |
| | 7,465,000 | 10,618,000 | 8,800,000 | 8,827,000 | 9,310,000 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget | 2020-21 Budget | 2021-22 Budget | 2022-23 Budget | 2023-24 Budget |
|-------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | L | £ | L | L | L |
| Housing Computer System | 600,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| Play Equipment | 80,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |
| | 680,000 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 |

| PROJECT | 2019-20 Budget | 2020-21 Budget | 2021-22 Budget | 2022-23 Budget | 2023-24 Budget |
|-------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| | £ | £ | £ | £ | £ |
| Renovation Grants (DFG) | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 |
| | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 | 832,800 |